          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3  CITY OF NEW YORK

             -------------------------------x

          4  THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          5            of the

          6  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

             (Held Jointly With)

          7  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

             RE: HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          8  -------------------------------x

                            May 12, 1999

          9                 Start:  12:00 p.m.

                            Recess: 12:50 p.m.

         10

                            City Hall

         11                 Council Chambers

                            New York, New York

         12

         13       B E F O R E:

         14              HERBERT BERMAN

                                Chairperson, Finance

         15

                          ARCHIE SPIGNER,

         16                     Chairperson, Housing

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Stanley Michels

         18                                 Martin Malave-Dilan

                                            Helen Marshall

         19                                 Lawrence Warden

                                            Tracy Boyland

         20                                 Madeline Provenzano

                                            Michael Nelson

         21                                 Andrew Eristoff

                                            James Oddo

         22                                 Bill Perkins

                                            Thomas Ognibene

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         217 Broadway -  Suite 511

         25              New York, New York 10007

                              (800) 756-3410

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Diane Lipset

          4  Associate Commissioner

             Budget and Fiscal Affairs

          5  NYC Housing Preservation and Development

          6  Richard T. Roberts

             Commissioner

          7  NYC Housing Preservation and Development

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            3

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We will now

          3  resume the hearing. This phase covers the Housing

          4  Preservation and Development. I see Commissioner

          5  Roberts at the table.

          6                 Commissioner Roberts, if you will

          7  have a seat and identify yourself for the record and

          8  any of your staff persons accompanying you, we would

          9  be glad to hear your testimony.

         10                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman.

         12                 Good afternoon. My name is Richard

         13  Roberts and I am the Commissioner of the Department

         14  of Housing Preservation and Development. Thank you

         15  for the opportunity to testify today on the

         16  Executive Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 2000 as it

         17  relates to HPD.

         18                 Sitting with me today is Diane

         19  Lipset, Associate Commissioner for Budget and Fiscal

         20  Affairs.

         21                 Overall, HPD's capital budget for

         22  Fiscal Year 2000 is $322 million, which includes

         23  approximately $239 million in City funds, and $84

         24  million in federal and state money.

         25                 Approximately $166 million is
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          2  allocated to rehabilitate City-owned properties and

          3  return the in rem housing stock to private

          4  ownership.

          5                 Another $55 million has been

          6  allocated to provide assistance to private owners to

          7  upgrade systems and to preserve properties at risk

          8  of abandonment, and 29 million is available to help

          9  subsidize affordable housing for low and moderate

         10  income housing.

         11                 There is also funding of $30 million

         12  for the supportive housing program to create housing

         13  for formerly homeless and special needs populations.

         14                 The balance of $42 million includes

         15  funding for demolition, computer systems and other

         16  housing-related capital needs.

         17                 During my preliminary budget

         18  testimony, I explained that the number of occupied

         19  City-owned properties is down to a record low of

         20  under 18,000. This number is now down to less than

         21  16,000. This means that during the first nine months

         22  of this fiscal year, we have already exceeded our

         23  disposition target for the entire 12 months of the

         24  year. Thanks to Building Blocks, Mayor Giuliani's

         25  initiative to convey City-owned properties to local
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          2  entrepreneurs, not-for-profits and tenants, and due

          3  to the support the Mayor's Initiative has received

          4  from the City Council leadership and members, the

          5  privatization effort is not just rehabilitating a

          6  few buildings, it is revitalizing whole

          7  neighborhoods.

          8                 Neighborhoods are also being

          9  transformed by the Partnership New Homes Program,

         10  and the ANCHOR Initiative. Each year, the

         11  Partnership New Homes Program provides over 1,100

         12  families with low cost, first-time homeownership in

         13  neighborhoods throughout the City.

         14                 Investment by these new stakeholders

         15  is having a tremendous positive effect in formerly

         16  distressed communities.

         17                 We saw considerable interest in the

         18  Partnership New Homes request for qualification,

         19  which includes 27 sites with over 2,300 units of

         20  development potential, in Queens, Brooklyn,

         21  Manhattan and the Bronx, and which presents over

         22  $350 million in new home ownership investment.

         23                 We particularly were pleased the RFP

         24  was able to offer a number of opportunities for new

         25  builders to participate in the program. We expect to
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          2  designate developers for the RFQ sites shortly.

          3                 Home ownership has proved to be an

          4  effective strategy for neighborhood development, yet

          5  New York City is some of the lowest home ownership

          6  rates in the country. To increase home ownership

          7  rates and further stimulate neighborhood

          8  revitalization, HPD is developing an initiative to

          9  promote home ownership in City neighborhoods.

         10                 While this initiative is still in the

         11  planning stages, we expect that it will include an

         12  advertising marketing campaign to promote home

         13  ownership, educational programs to inform businesses

         14  and their employees about employer assisted housing

         15  programs, a pilot program to help low and moderate

         16  income families accumulate savings for home

         17  ownership, and educational opportunities, and a low

         18  interest loan pool to help home owners fix up their

         19  homes and prevent housing abandonment.

         20                 HPD's ANCHOR sites, which combine

         21  investment in housing and economic development to

         22  comprehensively address neighborhood needs, are

         23  making significant headway. The first new stores

         24  developed under ANCHOR will open in the next month

         25  at Fulton Street and Ralph Avenue in Bedford
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          2  Stuyvesant, Brooklyn. These businesses include a

          3  drug store, insurance company and local

          4  entrepreneur.

          5                 In addition, we anticipate closing at

          6  the end of the month on a project that is the

          7  flagship of the ANCHOR Initiative, the Renaissance,

          8  at 116th Street and Malcolm X Boulevard in Harlem.

          9                 This 11-story structure will offer

         10  241 homeownership units and 60,000 square feet of

         11  retail space.

         12                 The newly enhanced Shabazz Vendor

         13  Market, which is just across the street from The

         14  Renaissance, will open for business next week. The

         15  new investment along ANCHOR's 116th Street corridor

         16  will total over $100 million.

         17                 In order to cover Fiscal Year 2000

         18  safe at home activities, $7.5 million of capital

         19  funds were moved forward in the preliminary budget.

         20  The Safe At Home Initiative remains on track, with

         21  317 new housing units and 1,200 rehabilitated units

         22  planned in Bedford Stuyvesant, Brooklyn, and the

         23  Morrisania section of the Bronx.

         24                 A key component in the Safe At Home

         25  Initiative is the Expansion of the work of HPD's
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          2  Narcotics Control Unit into private buildings. So

          3  far NCU has convinced the landlords of four of the

          4  top drug locations in the Morrisania Safe At Home

          5  Area to cooperate in efforts to rid their properties

          6  of drug dealing.

          7                 In Brooklyn, a notorious drug

          8  location in a deteriorated building directly across

          9  the street from a school has been sealed and drug

         10  operations there shut down.

         11                 NCU will continue to work with the

         12  Police Department, local residents and building

         13  owners to stamp out drug infestation in privately

         14  and City-owned buildings in Safe At Home areas.

         15                 I mentioned in my testimony last week

         16  on the Expense Budget that the City of New York is

         17  the most prolific developer of affordable housing

         18  for special needs tenants in the nation.

         19                 Over 7,000 units have been completed,

         20  are in construction, or in design, through HPD's

         21  supportive housing program, formerly known as the

         22  SRO loan program.

         23                 Through the original New York New

         24  York agreement, the City and State jointly developed

         25  more than 3,000 units of housing for homeless
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          2  mentally ill individuals, and are now planning on

          3  building 1,500 more.

          4                 In addition, HPD has used federal

          5  HOPWA and City capital funds to help develop housing

          6  for people with AIDS. In effect, over 1,500 units

          7  have been completed, are in construction or in

          8  design for this vulnerable population.

          9                 One recent and very visible example

         10  of the tremendous impact the rehabilitation of

         11  supportive housing can have on tenants and a

         12  community is the Kenmore Hotel on 23rd Street in

         13  Manhattan. A building that for years had been an

         14  eyesore and a blight in the neighborhood recently

         15  reopened after a gut rehabilitation with great

         16  fanfare and community support. This project, made

         17  possible by a combination of HPD, federal, state and

         18  private funds, not only provides quality housing for

         19  an at-risk population, but will contribute to the

         20  economic development of 23rd Street.

         21                 I would now like to announce that the

         22  Housing Development Corporation began a second round

         23  of their successful housing opportunity program

         24  which provides affordable rental and home ownership

         25  housing to middle-income New Yorkers. This round
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          2  promises to be even more wide-reaching than the

          3  first, which produced approximately 1,000 units of

          4  housing.

          5                 HPD will issue a total of 250 million

          6  of bonds, HDC rather, and has set aside $45 million

          7  of its reserve funds to support the construction of

          8  up to 2,500 apartments in all five boroughs over the

          9  next year.

         10                 To help accelerate HPD's disposition

         11  efforts, some of these units will be constructed on

         12  vacant City-owned land. Of the 2,500, more than 700

         13  units are already complete or under construction.

         14                 I hope this testimony has helped

         15  address any questions you might have regarding HPD's

         16  fiscal year 2000 capital budget. I appreciate the

         17  opportunity to speak with you today, and am happy to

         18  answer any questions that you might have.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I recognize

         21  Council Member Stanley Michels.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

         23  Commissioner, for that very comprehensive statement,

         24  and we welcome all of your new programs. That is the

         25  only hope we have for new housing in this City. We
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          2  can't depend on the state and the federal government

          3  to give us money.

          4                 I am very pleased that you have

          5  reduced your stock of in rem housing, as long as

          6  these units are being placed back on the market and

          7  people are utilizing the apartments in rehabilitated

          8  shape.

          9                 Perhaps the Department of Finance may

         10  be better to ask, but let me ask you, are we still

         11  taking in rem housing into the City? Are we still

         12  foreclosing and taking buildings in rem?

         13                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: The way that we

         14  are taking the properties now is through Local Law

         15  37, the Third Party Transfer Program.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand.

         17                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: So there are

         18  still, I mean there is kind of the traditional in

         19  rem taking, I would say that that is minimal.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Traditional,

         21  you mean borough by borough, you gather them up and

         22  do them all at once.

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: With a plan for

         24  the City to take them into City ownership, that is

         25  minimal.
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          2                 I am now at the point where -- and

          3  quite frankly, yes, the reduction of the in rem

          4  housing stock is really contributing, is a

          5  contribution of two factors; one, it has been an

          6  aggressive and accelerated disposition program, the

          7  other is the fact that we are not taking the

          8  properties, but in reaction to that we are actually

          9  doing two things. One is the third party transfer

         10  program where we actually have started to now

         11  initiate takings but under the new legislation, but

         12  secondly the anti-abandonment effort that I have,

         13  now I guess the last two times that I have spoken in

         14  front of this body have tried to highlight the

         15  progress that we are making on the anti-abandonment

         16  effort with the Borough offices and education and

         17  the target code enforcement and so forth, that is

         18  really the other mechanism we are using to try to

         19  deal with properties that aren't performing in the

         20  private market.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, if you

         22  can't give it to me now, give it to me later, but

         23  how many buildings are going in rem every year?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I don't know

         25  that off the top of my head.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            13

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Can we find

          3  out?

          4                 Because basically we have to

          5  understand also that this is a methodology of making

          6  sure people pay their real estate taxes, and if

          7  people won't pay their real estate taxes, then we

          8  have real problems. That is our main supportive

          9  taxes.

         10                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, actually --

         11  and again, this probably is something that we should

         12  address with the Department of Finance, but

         13  certainly Local Law 37 or at the time that the

         14  Council and the Mayor enacted Local Law 37, two

         15  things happened: Not only did it give us the

         16  authority to, or finance the authority to initiate

         17  the in rem taking in a different way, it also

         18  authorized the tax lien sale process. And the tax

         19  lien sale process has actually been a much more

         20  effective way for collecting taxes than anything we

         21  have done in the past.

         22                 Now, I am a little out of school here

         23  because I don't work at the Department of Finance so

         24  I don't want to make any blanket statements here

         25  then that are going to get them in trouble, but they
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          2  have raised a significant amount of tax revenue

          3  through tax lien sale process.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How many

          5  buildings are you taking under Local Law 37 a year?

          6                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, we

          7  initiated the pilot in the Bronx, and as I mentioned

          8  last week, we are in the process now of gearing up

          9  to do several additional takings, both in the safe

         10  at home areas, so that would be in the Morrisania

         11  section of the Bronx and also in Bedford Stuyvesant,

         12  and then also we have other takings that are in the

         13  planning stages.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Could you get

         15  the committee the numbers and locations?

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Sure.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And last year

         18  and the year before possibly so we can get an idea

         19  of what we are doing about it. I approve of Local

         20  Law 37, actually it was my idea back in the Koch

         21  Administration that the earlier we take it, the less

         22  money you have to spend to rehabilitate it, and that

         23  is important.

         24                 On this program, if you will bear

         25  with me, Mr. Chairman, and I am going to have to
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          2  leave. You talked about this program that you have

          3  with the City and the state for the homelessly

          4  mentally ill individuals.

          5                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And what I am

          7  concerned about is, and it may be already taking

          8  place in the Kenmore Hotel, which you talked about,

          9  is that the supportive services also, along with the

         10  housing and everything else that comes with it --

         11                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, we share

         12  your concern, and I think the important thing to

         13  recognize is exactly that fact. We have really led

         14  the way here in New York City with the various

         15  models for the creation of supportive housing, and

         16  the reason we have led the way is because we realize

         17  just the fact that you indicated, which is it is not

         18  just bricks and mortar, it is not just the

         19  rehabilitation of the property, it is also about

         20  providing services on site. And I don't know of any

         21  other local jurisdiction that has as extensive a

         22  network, provider groups who have worked as

         23  effectively to try to incorporate the services into

         24  the housing development. As a matter of fact, we

         25  don't fund development projects in our supportive
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          2  housing area without the supportive housing

          3  contracts and those services being in place and

          4  being delivered on site.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I might

          6  remind you of the history of this. This all started

          7  in the program of deinstitutionalization from

          8  upstate New York, and they were going to save money

          9  closing down these institutions and use that money

         10  for supportive services and housing, and it turned

         11  out they didn't close the institutions, they didn't

         12  give us the money, and we found that these people

         13  were then going into SROs without supportive

         14  services, and then we found out that a third of all

         15  of our homeless population came from SROs. So this

         16  is why we are doing this I guess, because if we

         17  repeat that history we have to learn from it.

         18                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And we don't

         20  want to repeat that history.

         21                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Absolutely. I

         22  think that is one of the reasons that the

         23  administration was very intent on taking the lead on

         24  the New York New York Agreement and had to work very

         25  hard to bring the state along to understand that not
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          2  only was the New York New York, the first New York

          3  New York Agreement effective in terms of developing

          4  housing, but it was also the most cost effective way

          5  for housing individuals with special needs.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, the

          7  state really put us in very bad shape and they

          8  really owe us on this program. And they have never

          9  kept their promise entirely to the mentally ill

         10  population that they released.

         11                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         14  Boyland.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman.

         17                 Welcome, Commissioner.

         18                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Hi. How are

         19  you?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I am pretty

         21  good today.

         22                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Good.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: First I

         24  wanted to begin by commending you on all of the work

         25  that you have done in the Brooklyn area with the
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          2  ANCHOR program, the Partnership Program, City Homes,

          3  City Works, Store Works and to go on, you have done

          4  a wonderful job in terms of working with my office

          5  and the other elected officials in my community in

          6  terms of bringing affordable homes to the 41st

          7  Councilmanic district. I want to commend you on

          8  that.

          9                 Also, I have maybe a three-part

         10  question. And this is just to sort of piggy-back on

         11  what my colleague brought up with the SRO population

         12  with the New York New York money in terms of

         13  building housing for people with AIDS or people with

         14  mental disability, mentally ill individuals; can you

         15  expound a little bit on that? And then move into, I

         16  think at the last hearing we were discussing the

         17  senior citizens that want to -- cannot afford to

         18  move into the 202 housing, but there is a funding

         19  source out there that allows for housing to be built

         20  for people that are slightly above that social

         21  service threshold that they are funding, the money

         22  may be available to build some of those housing, and

         23  if possible, can you expound on that, and we can

         24  move into a realm of doing things like that, in a

         25  maturing New York City where people are becoming
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          2  older and the cost of living is going up where their

          3  salaries and things are not moving up.

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: As for New York

          5  New York, we have an agreement from the state to

          6  assist us in providing the additional 1,500 units,

          7  and so we have a New York New York II Agreement. I

          8  think we are going to have to wait now until the

          9  process is resolved or proceeds to completion in

         10  Albany in terms of the State adoption of their

         11  budget, before we will be able to move forward with

         12  actually accepting proposals and applications for

         13  projects that it would be appropriate to fund under

         14  the program. But we were able to reach some closure.

         15  There had been a series of negotiations I think that

         16  had gone back now almost a year and a half, where

         17  there had been a lot of numbers bandied about, in

         18  terms of what we might be able to develop under the

         19  program, but we now actually have all of the

         20  elements in place to be able to fund the 1,500 units

         21  and we are now just waiting for the State budget to

         22  be adopted.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Is some HUD

         24  funding also incorporated --

         25                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No. It is state
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          2  and city funding.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Your second

          5  question as it goes to senior housing is, probably

          6  relates to the capital money that the Department for

          7  the Aging has included, had included in their

          8  budget. I think there is $8 million over the next

          9  two fiscal years, the upcoming fiscal years '00 and

         10  '01, to fund a model for senior housing or assisted

         11  living that would reach income levels slightly above

         12  what the HUD 202 program typically reaches.

         13                 We are now in the process of meeting

         14  internally between HPD, Department for the Aging,

         15  and Deputy Mayor Segarra's office around the

         16  elements of that program. I think to the extent that

         17  Council members have ideas or issues that they would

         18  like to bring to our attention, they can either

         19  forward those to me or to Deputy Mayor Segarra's

         20  office, certainly DFTA I am sure would be willing --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And RFPs, the

         22  process hasn't begun at all?

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, it hasn't

         24  begun at all.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We just had the

          3  money allocated, and I think there are going to be

          4  some issues with us trying to overlay some

          5  additional resources. Like a lot of the programs

          6  that we fund, unfortunately there are complicated

          7  programs that often require not only our resources

          8  but additional resources as well. So, we need to

          9  take a look at it to see whether the $8 million, how

         10  many units it is going to fund, what the model is,

         11  what the income ranges is going to be, what other

         12  resources we are going to have to add to that.

         13                 So, the money is there in DFTA's

         14  budget and so that is encouraging, and so we will

         15  work on the other issues.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Also on that,

         17  will it be, because I am speaking in terms of

         18  Queens, areas of those that have limited amount of

         19  City property available right now, and let's just

         20  say they have a project building, you know, large

         21  unit, those large multi-dwelling buildings, will

         22  there be some funding available in that to acquire

         23  some public or private buildings?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, I think

         25  that is an important issue we will have to look at.
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          2  I am not sure that I am actually confident enough to

          3  have parsed through the model enough to know whether

          4  there is funding that is available for acquisition.

          5  I doubt it. But we will probably need to look at

          6  that.

          7                 Often the issue when you are working

          8  with non-profits for housing development, that

          9  becomes a very significant issue, site acquisition,

         10  because non-profits just by their very nature aren't

         11  sitting on a portfolio of sites that they can just

         12  make available for whatever purpose. So, we will

         13  have to look at that and we will figure that out.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Is there an

         15  estimated date on when the negotiations between the

         16  Department of Aging --

         17                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We are just

         18  starting.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: You are just

         20  starting?

         21                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: My last

         23  question, on the sale of the community gardens,

         24  where are we with that in terms of the vacant land

         25  and the turnover rates for the community gardens?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: This set of

          3  sites, the current set of sites that are under

          4  discussion are a little different than sites --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: They are

          6  still under discussion, so there hasn't been a --

          7                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, they are

          8  under discussion, a little different than the sites

          9  that I have spoken to this group about in the past,

         10  and that is, these are sites that are really under

         11  the jurisdiction of the Department of Citywide

         12  Administrative Services for which they had

         13  longstanding land use approvals to actually move

         14  those sites out for auction and they are not sites

         15  that are necessarily focused on as community

         16  development or affordable housing development sites.

         17                 That being said, there, as you know,

         18  and the press reports are in part accurate and in

         19  part, just from my knowledge not accurate, but there

         20  are some discussions that are underway to actually

         21  try to facilitate a resolution to the site issue

         22  before the auction takes place. So, hopefully,

         23  depending on how that works out, hopefully the

         24  interest of all of the parties will be met and we

         25  will be able to move forward.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

          3  Commissioner.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          5  Rodriguez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman.

          8                 Hi. How are you doing, Commissioner?

          9                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Good.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I just have

         11  a short question. With regard to the Neighborhood

         12  Homes Program, I am looking at a list here and I see

         13  that some funds are being shifted or transferred

         14  from the TIL program, from the TIL Program to the

         15  Neighborhood Homes Program, and I was just wondering

         16  why these funds were transferred and if it was a

         17  change in philosophy?

         18                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No. I think it

         19  probably related to just -- you know, all of the

         20  funding, certainly TIL, NEP, NRP are much more

         21  mature programs than Neighborhood Homes.

         22  Neighborhood Homes is a program that we devised to

         23  deal specifically with a certain segment of the

         24  housing stock. It is smaller, typically brown

         25  stones, one, two, three-family homes, and as we get
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          2  deeper and deeper into the stock, we have to make

          3  some funding adjustments in order to apply those

          4  funds to the appropriateness of the stock that we

          5  have to dispose of. I think that is just an

          6  adjustment to reflect workload and that is really

          7  the extent of it. And quite frankly, it is probably

          8  not set in stone because there were some other late

          9  adjustments that were made in the budget that we are

         10  going to have to now go back and probably readjust.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, does it

         12  look like these transfer of funds or these amounts

         13  are going to be around $20 million?

         14                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, I think

         15  that is about right. Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And are we

         17  still keeping any funding for the other two

         18  programs?

         19                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And do we

         21  know the amount that we are keeping those two

         22  programs?

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Diane will

         24  addres that.

         25                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIPSET: For
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          2  the NEP program we have about 81 million in next

          3  year's budget, NRP 42 million, for TIL 21 million.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you

          5  very much.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay,

          8  Commissioner, you made mention in your testimony on

          9  page six, you mentioned the Housing Development

         10  Corporations and the role that they are playing. For

         11  those, we have a number of new members throughout

         12  and some of us old members do need a little

         13  enlightening. Could you tell us a little bit,

         14  exactly what and who is this housing development

         15  corporation in its connection to HPD?

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, the

         17  Housing Development Corporation is a state public

         18  benefit corporation, that is a local housing finance

         19  agency. At the state, there is a state housing

         20  finance agency, the Housing Finance Agency, HFA, and

         21  we have a City equivalent that has the legal

         22  authority, statutory authority to issue bonds,

         23  public indebtedness, in order to support affordable

         24  housing development activities.

         25                 And statutorily, as Commissioner of
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          2  HPD, I sit as Chair of the Housing Development

          3  Corporation Board. We utilize and work with the

          4  Housing Development Corporation to supplement and

          5  augment many of our programs and to raise money in

          6  order to support affordable housing development. And

          7  that is the Housing Development Corporation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You got that,

          9  guys?

         10                 Now, it further stated that they are

         11  going to do 2,500 apartments in all five boroughs;

         12  where? I assume, but I would rather have you tell

         13  me, are these all going to be in Bill Perkins

         14  district?

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes. There are

         16  actually some sites -- I mean, the element that

         17  would be relevant for particularly community board

         18  10 in Harlem would be the fact that we are trying to

         19  marry some City-owned sites with this funding

         20  stream.

         21                 When we originally announced the

         22  program in October of '97, since we were highly

         23  dependent upon taxable bond, and the market

         24  conditions for the issuance of taxable bonds, we

         25  focused on privately-owned sites for which we could

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            28

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2  move quickly to do the development. So, it was

          3  either privately owned vacant sites, or as of right

          4  conversions. There were the principle private

          5  buildings that you could do a conversion as of

          6  right, but that was the principle focus.

          7                 We had success with the program, the

          8  first 1,000 units I think went extremely well, we

          9  were pleased.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Where were they

         11  erected?

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: They were all

         13  over the City. Principally Queens, Brooklyn, I think

         14  there was one project in Staten Island, but South

         15  Park Slope, Bayside, Flushing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Can I get some

         17  of these addresses --

         18                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: -- Just so that

         20  I can go and take a look for my own satisfaction?

         21                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Sure.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Are they

         23  moderate, middle, low, what?

         24                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: They are

         25  moderate income. They are for families earning up to
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          2  about $125,000. The rents range from rents, or in

          3  the case of co-ops, the carrying charges range from

          4  $650 up to $800 on the low end, to up to about

          5  $1,300 on the high end, maybe a little higher,

          6  depending on the apartment size. But essentially the

          7  qualification process is very similar to the

          8  Mitchell-Lama Program, and although there isn't an

          9  ongoing supervisory or income verification process

         10  that continued.

         11                 We were successful with the first

         12  1,000 units, and then we authorized another 2,500

         13  units and the program has been very successful, and

         14  if we can get through these 2,500 units while the

         15  market is still reasonably good, we would love to

         16  authorize additional units.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I will be

         18  calling for an appointment to come and chat with

         19  you, so you can fill me in in the broad sense and

         20  the more detailed.

         21                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me just go

         23  and ask about the lead paint situation. That is a

         24  major concern. I understand there has been some sort

         25  of extension of a deadline. Would you bring the
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          2  Committee up to date as to HPD's focus and

          3  perspective on this issue at this time?

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Sure.

          5                 It is really, our focus is really

          6  two-fold: First, we, just as a matter of prudent

          7  management, have to prepare ourselves for the

          8  eventuality that there will not be a modification to

          9  Local Law 1, and therefore that we will have to

         10  implement --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You assume there

         12  will not be a modification?

         13                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, we have

         14  to prepare for that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, in the

         16  event that there is not.

         17                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: In the event

         18  that there isn't.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: However, we are

         20  being optimistic in being politicians and working

         21  hard, maybe there will be.

         22                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, I am not

         23  a politician, so I am trying to manage the --

         24  although some of my best friends are politicians,

         25  trying to manage the agency appropriately.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If you want me

          3  to use words like wonderful, like Council Member

          4  Boyland used, then I want to be among those friends

          5  as well.

          6                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: I understand.

          7                 We are trying to prepare ourselves

          8  for the eventuality of the implementation of Local

          9  Law 1. So, we are hiring people, we are entering

         10  into and engaging in requirements contracts, we are

         11  hiring, buying the technology, including the XRF

         12  testing machines. We are proceeding with an

         13  implementation plan, we are hiring, we are bringing

         14  staff members on, gearing up for implementation of

         15  Local Law 1 and meeting those requirements.

         16                 In the alternative we are also trying

         17  to be supportive of both the Mayor's Office and

         18  Council staff as they try to work through a variety

         19  of different issues designed to try to negotiate an

         20  alternative to Local Law 1.

         21                 When we came several months ago,

         22  Commissioner Cohen and I, to testify about the Local

         23  Law 1 we raised several issues as it related to both

         24  the legislation and also some of the alternative

         25  proposals that were being advanced.
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          2                 We continue to believe that there are

          3  problems, but that being said, we are trying to

          4  enter into some good faith negotiations, you are

          5  right. We have been granted a continuance where the

          6  parties have agreed to a one-month continuance of

          7  the stay, and so the clock is ticking and we are

          8  trying to get a resolution.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Could the fact

         10  that in the preliminary capital plan, 14.1 million

         11  was committed for 2,000 in the Executive Budget, 6.1

         12  million for lead paint removal was pushed from 2000

         13  to FY '01, is that in anticipation that maybe we

         14  won't need that money as rapidly or?

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, I think,

         16  again, that refers to one of the points that I made

         17  earlier. There were some last minute adjustments

         18  that were made to the capital budget, and we are

         19  going to revisit those because I don't want to give,

         20  there is an inconsistency between us gearing up for

         21  implementation of the legislation and some of those

         22  changes, so we need to revisit those and we will do

         23  that. But we will be ready to implement Local Law 1

         24  if we need to do so.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. There is a
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          2  question of old business, Spring Creek, last year

          3  many members of the Committee expressed their

          4  concern about HPD's elimination of the $10 million

          5  for the Neomeyer (phonetic) Spring Creek. At the

          6  time you informed us that the funds were removed as

          7  the result of a number of factors that were delaying

          8  development of the site.

          9                 We were further informed that if and

         10  when these issues are resolved, funds of this

         11  project would be restored. What is the current

         12  status of Spring Creek?

         13                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: There is no

         14  change. And that continues to be our position. I

         15  will point out two things. One is that those funds

         16  were not eliminated. They were moved out, moved to

         17  the outyears in connection with some normal

         18  adjustments that we needed to -- well, I won't say

         19  they are normal, but adjustments that we need to

         20  make, given the readiness of the project, in light

         21  of several factors that we went over I think in some

         22  degree of detail last year.

         23                 The second item that I will point out

         24  is that there were several other neighborhood

         25  initiatives that this year met the same fate, and we
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          2  had to, as a matter of fact, move out funding into

          3  the outyears for all of the neighborhood initiatives

          4  that the agency was carrying in the budget. So,

          5  whether it was the Melrose or renewal area, the

          6  Edgemere Urban Renewal Area, the Arverne Urban

          7  Renewal Area, there were several areas where we

          8  could no longer afford to hold money in the capital

          9  budget in light of the fact that the projects were

         10  not ready to move forward.

         11                 Now, two other points that I will

         12  make. The first thing is that our priority has

         13  always been to focus on buildings where we have

         14  tenants in place, or property -- or as it relates to

         15  new construction, the development of properties

         16  where there is an infrastructure in place to support

         17  that development. And to a certain extent, some of

         18  these urban renewal areas, while extremely

         19  important, and the public policy and development

         20  objectives and community development objectives that

         21  we want to try to achieve are extremely important.

         22  To a certain extent I think you have to characterize

         23  that as somewhat of a luxury, while there are other

         24  pressures on the capital budget. You have to focus

         25  on, it seems to me, on areas where we have got
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          2  communities that need rehabilitation, tenants who

          3  are living in difficult conditions so on and so

          4  forth.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          6  Perkins has a question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          8  very much, Mr. Chairman.

          9                 Commissioner, how are you?

         10                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Good.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Good. The

         12  2,500 apartments at HDC that was alluded to earlier,

         13  you did mention Community Board 10. I guess you were

         14  kind of being funny with regard to the original

         15  comment made by the -- so these 2,500 are all in --

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, no, no.

         17  What I was saying was that the element of -- the

         18  element of my remarks that I thought were

         19  appropriate, given the comment that the Chair made,

         20  was the fact that we have looked at, for the first

         21  time including City-owned sites, in this process.

         22                 We very much would like to bring some

         23  of this middle income development to sites where the

         24  City owns the vacant land, as opposed to just doing

         25  it exclusively on privately-owned parcels, because
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          2  there are some neighborhoods in communities where,

          3  quite frankly, where a disproportionate amount of

          4  the vacant land is owned by the City and we are not

          5  doing enough of this type of development in certain

          6  communities.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: In Community

          8  Board 10, I believe we have one of these that has

          9  been approved. It has already gone through the land

         10  use process for Community Board 10. I am almost

         11  positive it has, because I met with the developers

         12  and I remember dealing with them in the land use

         13  process.

         14                 So, of this 2,500, you figure all of

         15  that will probably go to City-owned sites?

         16                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, it will be

         17  some breakdown. We are just trying to -- now that we

         18  have got the money allocated, we are trying to

         19  determine how many City-owned sites we can include

         20  in the process. It will be less than a dozen, but I

         21  think that that will -- there is five or six sites

         22  that I think have some real promise. I think we are

         23  going to push for more, HDC might have a different

         24  view about that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Any of those
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          2  five or six in Harlem have promise?

          3                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes,

          4  absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Good.

          6                 Let me ask you, with regard to the

          7  TIL and the NEP, I know my colleague mentioned that

          8  some money was being shifted, and you are saying

          9  that is not really a shift?

         10                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: No, no. I am

         11  just saying we are going to have to look at that,

         12  and I will get you some more information as to why

         13  we made that shift.

         14                 The one thing that I am sure of is

         15  that the Neighborhood Homes Program, which is a

         16  program that is focused exclusively on smaller

         17  buildings, one to four family, where we actually

         18  convey the building to a non-profit, and then the

         19  non-profit, the community-based non-profit then

         20  works with the buildings in terms of trying to

         21  identify appropriate owners and so forth, that is a

         22  program that we designed because as we got deeper

         23  and deeper into the housing stock, we started to see

         24  more and more of these smaller buildings, and we

         25  didn't think that the other models, NRP, NEP,
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          2  necessarily lent themselves to these properties.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: TIL?

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: TIL may or may

          5  not. We need to look at that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes, I would

          7  hope you could look at TIL especially.

          8                 You know, we have been looking at

          9  what is happening with NEP in particular in my area,

         10  as you know, as well as the TIL buildings, and one

         11  of the things that is sort of disturbing is the

         12  amount of City-owned property that is infested with

         13  drug dealing.

         14                 Now, I know that you have a unit that

         15  specifically addresses that, but one of the concerns

         16  that has been brought to our attention, particularly

         17  with regard to NEP, is the fact that the buildings

         18  very often are made more difficult to fix up because

         19  of that particular problem, and I am wondering, you

         20  know, what can we do about that?

         21                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes, I think

         22  that is a difficult issue no matter what the context

         23  of the rehabilitation work, whether it is TIL,

         24  whether it is NRP, whether it is NEP.

         25                 One of the reasons that we have

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            39

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2  worked very hard with the Narcotics Control Unit, is

          3  just this problem that you identify and I appreciate

          4  you acknowledging the unit. The unit had

          5  historically been focused on buildings while they

          6  were in City ownership. We have now tried to expand

          7  the role of units to be much more proactive. They do

          8  provide some assistance and support in the

          9  rehabilitation process.

         10                 I am not aware of, and you know, I

         11  would be happy to discuss with you, I am not aware

         12  of the issue being more predominant in NEP

         13  buildings, say as compared to NRP buildings, but it

         14  may very well be the case.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I didn't mean

         16  to suggest that, I just happened to have become

         17  acutely more aware of it recently in discussions

         18  with entrepreneurs and tenants who were having

         19  difficulties and who were frustrated because the

         20  unit should do better.

         21                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: It's a small

         22  unit.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Right. And I

         24  am wondering what we can do to strengthen that part

         25  of it, because it costs so much, it seems that the
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          2  cost factor involved in this in terms of security,

          3  in terms of how long it takes to move people's -- I

          4  am sure you have been to enough meetings to tell you

          5  that they have heard of this, so I am just wondering

          6  how do we help make that a stronger situation. Some

          7  of it also has to do with coordinating other

          8  agencies, but to the extent that your agency can do

          9  anything about it.

         10                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We would be

         11  happy to take a look at it, and if you have specific

         12  information or ideas, if you forward it to my office

         13  -- we have, it is a small unit, and we have at

         14  various times looked at options in terms of

         15  increasing the size of the unit. It is a small unit,

         16  but I will say it is effective. The question becomes

         17  just relative to the need, if we need to beef it up

         18  and I think we need to take a look at that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, I am

         20  glad to hear that, and I would like to help you in

         21  whatever way I can. Because I think, again, it

         22  discredits to some extent an enormous amount of

         23  effort that you are trying to make, and in fact, you

         24  know, you have this kind of a problem and there is a

         25  lot of support in the communities for what you are
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          2  doing, if you can beef up that kind of operation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

          4                 Council Member Marshall.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I would like

          6  to be considered as one of your friends, too,

          7  Commissioner.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: You are. I have

          9  a lot of friends today. I don't know what is going

         10  to happen to me when I --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: No, and it

         12  is based on your real concern on issues and concerns

         13  in my district. I would like to start off -- do you

         14  also manage the Store Works Program?

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: That is an

         17  extremely successful program, and we have a few

         18  sites that, one is completed almost and the others

         19  are at work. And that is a very forward thinking

         20  program and I would like to see more of that.

         21                 Now, also on the partnership housing,

         22  the partnership and you call it the New Homes and

         23  ANCHOR Initiative, awhile back we had identified

         24  sites at the request of HPD for more partnership

         25  houses, and we have a quite a few now and we have
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          2  land use, property that is owned by the City which

          3  is identified, and it was supposed to be East

          4  Elmhurst, I think two or three, and it never really

          5  came into fruition. It seems as though the

          6  contractor at the end backed out.

          7                 But those are City-owned lots that

          8  are very, very amenable for housing and I would like

          9  to make sure that you still continue with that

         10  project.

         11                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Okay, we will

         12  take a look at it. I don't know the specific status

         13  of that but I will certainly look into it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: All right.

         15  The other thing is that when the houses are built,

         16  it seems as though we very rarely can, anybody in

         17  the community really is able to move into those

         18  houses, and of course they watch them going up and

         19  they would just love to get them and many times they

         20  are young couples and it would be their first time

         21  to own a home, they lived in rather cramped

         22  quarters. It seems to me the method for people to

         23  get to those houses ought to be a little more

         24  publicly broadcast than the articles that you put in

         25  the paper.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            43

          1  HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT

          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Well, we would

          3  be happy to expand and are trying to expand our

          4  information dissemination about the program and the

          5  home. Part of the -- in September we annually

          6  sponsor a home ownership month and one of the

          7  reasons that we try to do that is to try to bring

          8  attention to, not only the projects that we have

          9  completed, but also the projects that we have on the

         10  drawing board.

         11                 Let me say two specific things

         12  though, about community residents in there, the

         13  allocation of the homes. First is that the program

         14  has a 30 percent community preference built into --

         15  I mean, that is a minimum, and so to the extent that

         16  when we take the projects through the land use

         17  approval process, that is often a requirement and a

         18  condition before the local community boards and the

         19  Council and others will sign off on the project that

         20  that preference be in place.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I am aware

         22  of that.

         23                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Secondly, all

         24  of the projects have associated not only with them a

         25  private developer and the housing partnership, but
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          2  also a local based community sponsor that is

          3  responsible for marketing the project, and getting

          4  the information out to community residents. If there

          5  are particular projects for which you have a concern

          6  or that you are aware where that outreach was not

          7  effective, or needed to be beefed up or improved, we

          8  are happy to analyze that.

          9                 I mean the community sponsor receives

         10  a fee in support for actually conducting that work

         11  and they should be able to do that work in a way

         12  that actually yields some results. So we would be

         13  happy to work with you on that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: We also have

         15  where the City takes, in fact there are quite a few

         16  buildings now in the Home Works Program where they

         17  have taken over City-owned buildings and are going

         18  to redesign them. Could I make a suggestion that at

         19  least community boards be alerted to it? Because

         20  they send out information to block associations and

         21  all of the different groups and the civic groups in

         22  the communities, at least if the community board is

         23  made aware of it, and possibly applications or

         24  something are there so that the people could know

         25  some place locally where to go and at least apply?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Absolutely. I

          3  would be happy to do that and happy to do more of

          4  it.

          5                 I think we do do that now, I know

          6  that I personally signed letters announcing all of

          7  the projects to all of the Council people, and the

          8  Community Board representatives and that includes

          9  the packet, so --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I mean, you

         11  know, the application --

         12                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Right, and that

         13  has information packets in it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Oh, really?

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: We will do a

         16  better job of that if it is somehow lost between,

         17  slipping between the cracks.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, NHS

         19  was supposed to be, they were -- because we lost our

         20  HPD office, you know, it is out in Jamaica now, but

         21  NHS was supposed to be that non-profit organization,

         22  but they have moved to Woodside now. So, I mean I am

         23  still talking with them and so on, but we don't have

         24  somebody located in the community, it would be good

         25  if at least the community board could be made aware.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: NHS works with

          3  the Store Works Program --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes, I know.

          5                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: -- But for each

          6  new homes development project there is a local based

          7  community sponsor, it could be NHS, it could be

          8  another group. So, for each project we have, so it

          9  is not an umbrella -- we have got an umbrella

         10  relationship with NHS on StoreWorks.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, I

         12  would like at some point to talk with you or someone

         13  on your staff about the relationship with NHS, and

         14  you know, how is that going to play out now.

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Absolutely.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Okay, thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Commissioner, I

         19  think that completes our list of members who wanted

         20  to ask questions at this time.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Mr.

         23  Chairman, can I just ask him one other question?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You can ask

         25  whatever you want.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: On the TIL

          3  program, do you -- after it has been turned over to

          4  the tenant, what sort of monitoring or follow-up is

          5  done with the condition of the building and how it

          6  is working out with the tenant ownership? Is someone

          7  there to help them IN how do you handle a building

          8  when you own it?

          9                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Yes. We do a

         10  lot of work, not only post conveyance, but also

         11  preconveyance, and the preconveyance work is

         12  actually the -- I think the most important work

         13  because that is where the intensive training of the

         14  tenants and organization of the tenants actually

         15  takes place, and we actually contract with the

         16  profit organizations that work with us to provide

         17  support to the tenants, not only preconveyance but

         18  also after the buildings have been conveyed.

         19                 And we monitor the buildings very

         20  closely with respect to their maintenance, operation

         21  of the property and so forth.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Can I have

         23  the name of the person in your agency who handles

         24  that?

         25                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: John Warren.
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          2  863-7301.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: 7301.

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Area code 212.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: As it relates to

          7  TIL and NEP, Commissioner, we are spending a

          8  tremendous amount of money, perhaps it would be

          9  helpful to this Council if this Committee again

         10  arranges for a tour of some of these buildings. As

         11  optimistic as we are, it is hard to imagine that

         12  they have all been successful as we would have hoped

         13  they would be.

         14                 I can imagine given the make-up of

         15  the premise that these concepts were based on, it

         16  has to have some weaknesses and possibly some

         17  failures.

         18                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: There are some

         19  weaknesses, but I will say that the one element that

         20  I think we all should be proud of, which I think

         21  leads to, and is really the underpinning of the

         22  success of these programs, is the tremendous amount

         23  of investment that we make in these buildings,

         24  particularly on the capital budget side, in the

         25  rehabilitation process.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is why we

          3  need to ensure --

          4                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: It cuts both

          5  ways, exactly. That is absolutely right. That is why

          6  they are successful. That is also why we have a

          7  vested interest in having them be successful.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We will meet

          9  again formally and informally as needs arise to

         10  inform the progress in these areas.

         11                 Seeing no additional questions at

         12  this time, then this concludes this portion of the

         13  budget hearings on the Housing Committee and the

         14  Finance Committee.

         15                 COMMISSIONER ROBERTS: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 12:50 p.m.)
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